
Portola City Council Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 12, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF PORTOLA 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022                 35 THIRD AVENUE 

6:00 P.M.             PORTOLA, CA 96122 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS ATTENDING VIA TELECONFERENCE AS PERMITTED BY 

CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR NEWSOM EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS                                                                                                                                     CITY STAFF 

Mayor Pat Morton City Manager Lauren Knox 

Mayor Pro Tem Tom Cooley Public Works Director Todd Robert Finance Officer Susan Scarlett 

Councilmember Phil Oels City Attorney Steve Gross 

Councilmember Stan Peiler Deputy City Clerk Tara Kindall 

Councilmember Bill Powers 

 
The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are regularly held the second and fourth Wednesday of 

each month at 6:00 p.m. Your interest and participation is encouraged and welcome. 

 

As permitted by Executive Order N-29-20, proclaiming a State of Emergency in the State of California, the 

City Council Chamber at City Hall will not be accessible to the public for the City of Portola’s January 12, 

2022 Regular City Council meeting. 

 

The City Council meeting is accessible to the public via live streaming at: https://zoom.us/j/3583067836 or by 

phone at: Phone Number 1.669.900.6833; Meeting ID: 358 306 7836. 
 

Any person desiring to address the City Council on any item not on the agenda may do so during public 

comment.  Public comments made during a regular Council meeting may be recorded. Public comment will 

be accepted via email or chat on any item on the agenda at any time beginning at 6:00 p.m. and ending at the 

close of public comment on the item. Please direct your comments to Tara Kindall, Deputy City Clerk, 

tkindall@cityofportola.com or access the chat function on the Zoom meeting platform during the live stream.  

Members of the public may submit their comments in writing to be included in the public record. 

 

Any person with a disability may submit a request for reasonable modification or accommodation to the 

above-described means for accessing and offering comment at the meeting to Tara Kindall at 

tkindall@cityofportola.com who will swiftly resolve such request. 
 

https://zoom.us/j/3583067836
mailto:tkindall@cityofportola.com
mailto:t.kindall@ci.portola.ca.us


Portola City Council Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 12, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 

  

CONSENT CALENDAR:  These items include routine financial and administrative actions.  All items on the 

consent calendar will be voted on at the same time during the meeting under “Consent Calendar”.  If you wish 

to have an item removed from the Consent Calendar, you may do so by addressing the presiding officer. 
 

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on this 

agenda are on file in the Office of the City Clerk and are available for public inspection.  If you have any 

questions on any agenda items, contact the City at 530.832.6801. 
 

Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities.  Reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate 

participation of the disabled in the City’s public meetings.  If special accommodation for the disabled is 

needed, please notify the City at 530.832.6801 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

For additional information visit the City of Portola Web Page: www.cityofportola.com.   

 

 

 

http://www.cityofportola.com/


Portola City Council Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 12, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 

  

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 12, 2022 

6:00 P.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

 This section is intended to provide members of the public with an opportunity to comment on 

any subject that does not appear on this agenda.  Please note that California law prohibits the 

City Council from taking action on any matter which is not on the posted agenda, unless it is 

determined to be an urgency item by the City Council.  Any member of the public wishing to 

address the City Council during “PUBLIC COMMENT” shall first secure permission of the 

presiding officer, stand; may give his/her name and address to the Clerk for the record. Each 

person addressing the City Council shall be limited to three minutes ordinarily, unless the 

presiding officer indicates a different amount will be allotted. 

 

5. CITY COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. City Council Communications/Committee Reports 

 

B. Staff Communications/Fire Report/Sheriff’s Report/Air Quality Report 

 

C. City Manager Report 

6.   CONSENT CALENDAR 

These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial. The City Council will act upon 

them at one time without discussion. Any Councilmembers, staff member or interested party 

may request that an item be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. Additional 

budget appropriations will require a four/fifths roll call vote. 

 

A. Claims – Adopt Resolution No. 2494 authorizing payment of claims for the period of 

December 17, 2021 through January 5, 2022. [pages 1-4]   

 

Accounts Payable: $141,190.02 

Payroll:  $  37.207.19 

  Total:   $178,397.21 

 

        



Portola City Council Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 12, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 

  

7. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

A. Audit. 

Presentation of the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Audit by Finance Officer Susan Scarlett. 

Discussion and possible action. [pages 5-88] 

 

B. Committee Appointments.  

Review, discuss and make changes to current committee appointments. Discussion and 

possible action. [pages 89-92]  

 

C. Conditional Offer of Employment and Employment Agreement for Interim City 

Manager. 

Consideration of approving a conditional offer of employment and an employment 

agreement for an interim City Manager and authorizing the Mayor to execute both on 

behalf of the City. Discussion and possible action. [pages 93-114] 

 

8.   CLOSED SESSION – Conference with Legal Counsel. 

Closed session pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1); Conference with 

Legal Counsel regarding California Labor Commissioner, State Case Number WC-CM-

846897. 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

 



Resolution No. 2494  January 12, 2022 

RESOLUTION NO. 2494 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTOLA 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF CLAIMS FOR THE PERIOD 

  DECEMBER 17, 2021 THROUGH JANUARY 5, 2022. 

 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

CHECK NUMBERS: 43516-43534 

 

PAYROLL 

CHECK NUMBERS: 17008-17035 

 

 

                         

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Portola has been fully advised that all such 

claims and demands are legal obligations of the City; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has fully considered the claims and money demands and 

payment thereof as set forth below and in "Exhibit A" attached hereto and incorporated 

herein. 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: $  141,190.02 

PAYROLL:   $    37,207.19     

TOTAL:   $  178,397.21    

   

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT all claims and demands represented 

are just and proper and legal demands or claims against the City of Portola, and the payment 

of any such demands is approved and authorized. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of January, 2022 by the following 

vote: 

 

AYES: 

 

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:                                                                          

 

             

       Pat Morton, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Tara Kindall, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

I, Tara Kindall, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Portola, do hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted by the City Council at the City of 

Portola Regular meeting thereof held on January 12, 2022. 

 

             

       Tara Kindall, Deputy City Clerk 

1



[This page left intentionally blank] 

2



3



[This page left intentionally blank] 

4



 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA STAFF REPORT 

 

 

DATE:           January 6, 2022 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

 

FROM: Susan Scarlett, Finance Officer   

 

MEETING: January 12, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Audit presentation and financial update 2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

Presentation of the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Audit. Attached is an electronic copy of the 2020-

2021 Audit. A hard copy of the audit is also available. Please contact me ahead of time if you 

have specific questions regarding the audit in case I need to have additional information 

available.  

 

Review a brief summary of financial information from the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year.  

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Accept the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year audit.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



[This page left intentionally blank] 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA STAFF REPORT 

 

 
 

DATE: January 5, 2022 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 

FROM: Tara Kindall, Deputy City Clerk  
 

MEETING: January 12, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Council Committees, Boards and Commissions 

 

 

Background: 

 

Annually the Council reviews appointments to Council Committees, Boards and Commissions. 

Traditionally, following an election and reorganization of the Council, the Mayor makes 

appointments to vacancies at the first meeting in January.  

 

Below staff has outlined the current Council Committees, Boards and Commissions with 

information regarding its purpose, meeting times and location so the Council can review the 

committees and talk about each of them.   

 

Council Committees, Boards and Commissions are made through Mayoral appointments. Staff 

recommends that the Council review and discuss the list and the Mayor may make appointments 

to all/some or none of the below.  

 

Staff has also noted two ad-hoc committees below and recommends the Council review their status 

and decide if they should continue or be disbanded. 

 

Regional Commissions/Committees/Boards 
 

Airport Land Use Commission 

Lauren Knox  

Todd Roberts 

 

This committee meets in coordination with Plumas County and meets very intermittently, meeting 

may be held at various locations 

 

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 

Susan Scarlet 

Tom Cooley 

 

This committee meets in coordination with Plumas County and meets intermittently in Quincy.  

This committee must include at least one Council member. 

  

89



Plumas County Integrated Waste Management Task Force  

Lauren Knox 

Todd Roberts 

 

This committee meets in coordination with Plumas County and meets intermittently in Quincy.  

This committee traditional included staff members and should continue to include at least one, if 

not two, staff members. The Committee needs one member and one alternate, it is preferred if the 

alternate is also able to attend meetings. 

 

Plumas LAFCo 

Bill Powers 

Tom Cooley 

Pat Morton (alternate) 

 

This Commission meets in coordination with Plumas County and meets every other month on the 

second Monday of the month in Quincy. The Plumas LAFCo Commission is comprised of two 

members appointed from the Plumas County Board of Supervisors, two members appointed from 

the City Council of the city of Portola, and one member appointed from the public-at-large. The 

Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission was created by the Legislature in 1963 to 

discourage urban sprawl and encourage the orderly formation and development of local 

government agencies within Plumas County. There is a LAFCo in each county in California. Any 

member appointed on behalf of local governments shall represent the interests of the public as a 

whole and not solely the interests of the appointing authority. This Commission must include at 

least two Council members and one Councilmember alternate. 

 

DEAL 

Bill Powers 

 

This Committee meets in Susanville. Mayor Bill Powers will provide additional information. 

 

Transportation Commission 

Phil Oels 

Bill Powers 

Susan Scarlett  

 

This committee meets in coordination with Plumas County and meets on the third Monday of every 

month as necessary in Quincy.   

90



SCORE 

Lauren Knox 

Susan Scarlett (alternate) 

 

This is the Small City Organized Risk Effort Board. This organization manages the Cities workers 

compensation and liability insurance coverage pool. This Board meets quarterly in Anderson, CA. 

This Board can include Council and staff. However, this committee has traditionally included the 

Finance Officer and a staff member on its Board. It is recommended that this committee include 

at least include at least one staff member as the Board meetings include information needed by 

staff.  

 

City of Portola Committees 
 

Emergency Services Policy Committee 

Lauren Knox 

Pat Morton 

 

This is a City of Portola Committee which meets intermittently and would be called to meet during 

any Emergency. This Committee should include the City Manager and the Mayor. 

 

Finance and Administration 

Tom Cooley 

Pat Morton 

 

This Committee meets intermittently and discusses Finance an Administration issues and makes 

recommendation to the City Council. This Committee should consist of two Councilmembers.  

 

Infrastructure Committee 

Tom Cooley 

Bill Powers 

 

This Committee meets intermittently and discusses infrastructure issues and makes 

recommendation to the City Council. This Committee should consist of two Councilmembers.  

 

Community Development 

Phil  Oels 

Stan Peiler 

 

This is a City of Portola Committee which meets intermittently, this Committee discusses 

community development issues and makes recommendation to the City Council. This Committee 

should consist of two Councilmembers.  

  

91



Ad Hoc Committees 
 

Fire Wise Ad Hoc Committee 

Phil Oels 

Bill Powers 

 

This committee meets intermittently and was created May 24, 2017 to assist the community in 

becoming FireWise and beginning its own Fire Wise Committee. The Council should discuss if its 

purpose has been reached and if the Committee should be disbanded or maintained and to what 

goal and potential end date.  

 

Fire Department Advisory Committee 

Pat Morton 

Tom Cooley 

 

This committee meets intermittently and was created October 11, 2017 to assist the staff in 

overcoming obstacles facing the Portola Volunteer Fire Department and to make recommendation 

to staff and the Council with regard to the Fire Department. The Council should discuss if its 

purpose has been reached and if the Committee should be disbanded or maintained and to what 

goal and potential end date.  
  
 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Staff recommends that the Council review and discuss the list and the Mayor may make 

appointments.  

 

92



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 1 

INTERIM CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

Between the 

CITY OF PORTOLA 

And 

JON KENNEDY 

 

 

This City Manager Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into and effective this 

_____ day of January 2022, by and between the CITY OF PORTOLA (“City”), a municipal 

corporation of the State of California, and Jon Kennedy (“Manager”), an individual.  City and 

Manager may be referred to herein individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” Under this 

Agreement, the City offers, and Manager accepts, employment as Interim City Manager of the 

City. 

 

1. Duties: 

 

Manager shall be the chief executive officer of the City and perform those duties as set forth 

in the Portola Municipal Code (“Municipal Code”), Chapter 2.04, those duties that are prescribed 

by the laws of the State of California and of the United States of America and those responsibilities 

that are commonly assigned to a city manager of a city in California. Manager shall perform such 

other legally permissible and proper duties and functions appropriate to and consistent with the 

professional role and responsibilities of City Manager, as the City Council shall from time to time 

assign. 

 

A. Manager shall administer and enforce policies established by the City Council and 

promulgate rules and regulations as necessary to implement City Council policies. 

 

B. Direct the work of all appointive City Officers and departments that are the concern and 

responsibility of the City Council, except those that are directly appointed by or report directly to 

the City Council. 

 

C. Recommend to the City Council, from time to time, adoption of such measures as Manager 

may deem necessary or expedient for the health, safety, or welfare of the community or for the 

improvement of administrative services. 

 

D. Evaluate administrative practices that may result in greater operational effectiveness or 

economy in City government and develop and recommend to the City Council long range plans to 

improve City operations and prepare for the City’s growth and development. 

 

93



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 2 

E. Provide for management, development and training and develop leadership qualities as 

necessary to insure the highest standards of managerial practices. 

 

F. Manager shall act in the City’s best interests at all times and perform Manger’s duties in a 

competent and professional manner.  Furthermore, as the City’s highest officer, Manager shall 

endeavor at all times to exercise the highest degree of integrity, committing to comply with the 

International City/County Managers Association (“ICMA”) Code of Ethics and shall not engage 

in any conduct or activities, on- or off-duty, that reflect discredit or bring disrepute on the City or 

impair its efficient and effective operation. 

 

G. Manager is exempt from the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor and Standards Act, as 

amended, but is expected to engage in those hours of work that are necessary to fulfill the 

obligations of the Manager. 

 

H. Manager shall perform the duties required hereunder at City’s City Hall and at such other 

place or places as the City or Manager shall in good faith require or as the interests, needs, business, 

and opportunities of the City shall require or make advisable. In order to facilitate the discharge of 

his duties, Manager agrees to live within fifteen (15) minutes driving distance to City’s City Hall, 

as measured during what would be considered to be normal or average driving conditions. City 

recognizes that Manager requires a six-month period of transition beginning at the commencement 

of his employment during which he relocates to the vicinity of the City. During this period of 

transition, the fifteen (15) minutes driving distance provision of this paragraph will not be strictly 

enforced. 

 

2. Devotion to City Business: 

 

The Manager position is a full-time position.  Therefore, Manager shall focus his professional 

time, ability, and attention to the City’s business during the term of this Agreement. 

 

3. Hours of Work: 

 

The Manager position is full-time with a work schedule generally consistent with the normal 

business hours adopted by the City.  Manager shall devote the time necessary to adequately 

perform his duties as City Manager. The Parties anticipate that Manager will work a sufficient 

number of hours per week allocated between regular business hours and hours outside of regular 

business hours including, without limitation, attendance at regular and special City Council 

meetings. Toward that end, Manager shall be allowed reasonable flexibility in setting his own 

office hours, provided the schedule of such hours provides a significant presence at City Hall, 

reasonable availability to the City Council, City staff, and members of the community during 

regular City business hours and for the performance of his duties and of City business. Manager 

94



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 3 

may perform work off site as appropriate.  Manager agrees to be reachable by telephone for 

consultation and advice when he is not physically working in the City. Manager also agrees to 

respond to the City for emergency situations.  

 

4. Term: 

 

A.     Manager’s employment will commence on January 31, 2022, or sooner as mutually 

agreed by the Parties and continue for a period of one (1) year. The initial period of employment 

will be an orientation provided by the current City Manager who shall retain the title and all duties 

and authority of the City’s City Manager during such orientation period. Effective February 11, 

2022, or sooner as mutually agreed by the Parties, Manager shall have the title of Interim City 

Manager and assume all of the duties and authority set forth in Section 1, Duties, of this 

Agreement. This Agreement and Manager’s employment shall terminate on February 23, 2023, 

unless terminated sooner in accordance with this Agreement. 

 

B. The Parties may mutually agree to extend the term of this Agreement.  Any such 

extension shall be set forth in a written document approved and executed by both Parties. 

 

C. The Parties acknowledge and agree that Manager’s employment by the City 

pursuant to this Agreement is on a temporary and interim basis during which the City will seek to 

fill the City Manager position with a regular, full-time City Manager (“RFTCM”).  The Parties 

further acknowledge and agree that as of the effective date of this Agreement, Manager has 

expressed interest in being appointed and serving as the City’s RFTCM and that during the term 

of this Agreement the Manager shall evaluate whether he has continued interest in such position 

and the City will consider and evaluate whether it is interested in contracting with Manager to be 

appointed to and serving in such position.  The Parties may, but are not required to, agree to amend 

or revise this Agreement or enter into a new agreement for Manager to be appointed and serve as 

the City’s RFTCM.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Manager shall not 

participate in the making of the contract for the RFTCM position, shall play no role whatsoever in 

the contracting-making process for such position, shall not engage in and shall disqualify himself 

from participating in any act involving preliminary discussions, negotiations, compromises, 

reasoning, planning, preparing, suggesting or distributing job qualifications or solicitations for 

such position and shall not influence or attempt to influence directly or indirectly the City in the 

award of a contract for such position to promote his personal interests.  The Parties further 

acknowledge and agree that the activities described in the preceding sentence are outside the scope 

of Manager’s duties pursuant to this Agreement that they shall be performed by the City’s City 

Council and other City staff, consultants and contractors selected by the City Council. This sub-

Section 4.C. is not intended and shall not be interpreted as requiring the City and Manager to 

amend or revise this Agreement or enter into a new agreement for Manager to be appointed and 

95



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 4 

serve as the City’s RFTCM or to change the at-will nature of Manager’s employment with the City 

or either Party’s right to terminate this Agreement as provided herein. 

 

5. Compensation: 

 

A.    Manager’s initial annual Base Salary shall be Ninety-five Thousand Dollars 

($95,000.00).  Said amount shall be payable in installments at-the same time and in the same 

manner as other employees of the City are paid. 

 

B.    Manager shall be entitled to receive cost-of-living adjustments or any similar across-

the-board increases that the City Council determines, in its discretion, to approve for all City 

employees. 

 

C.   Manager’s Base Salary may be adjusted on or about the three (3) month anniversary 

of the commencement of Manager’s employment and thereafter in conjunction with Manager’s 

performance reviews. 

 

D.    Manager’s Base Salary increases approved by the City Council from time to time 

pursuant to this Agreement shall not require an amendment to this Agreement to be effective. Such 

increases may be set forth in a resolution or minute action approved by the City Council and 

ratified by resolution. 

 

E.    If the City reduces the Base Salary or any other financial benefit of the Manager in a 

percentage that is greater than the average reduction of all City employees, without the approval 

of the Manager, Manager shall be entitled to severance pay under Section 12.B. of this Agreement. 

 

6. Periodic Evaluation: 

 

A.    City shall review the performance of Manager within approximately three (3) months 

of the commencement of Manager’s employment and shall thereafter meet approximately every 

three (3) months, or more frequently as either Party desires, to review the Manager’s performance. 

 

B.    Increases to the Manager’s Base Salary will be considered, at the sole discretion of 

the City, as part of the initial performance evaluation and each evaluation. 

 

7. Additional Benefits: 

 

A. City Vehicle. Because Employee is on-call twenty-four (24) hours per day and 

expected to be available for City business at all hours, Employee shall be provided with exclusive 

use of a City-owned vehicle. Use of City-owned vehicles shall be relied upon as the primary means 

96



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 5 

of vehicle usage for City business as it provides City the greatest control over operating costs, 

usage, maintenance, inspection, and insurance. Use of the vehicle assigned to the Employee on a 

permanent basis is limited to daily commuting to and from the City and for City business only. 

Personal use of the vehicle shall be limited only to use during the six-month transition period at 

the beginning of the term of this Agreement during which Manager may travel back and forth from 

the City to Ukiah, California and relocates to the vicinity of the City and other uses that are de 

minimis and incidental to Employee’s commute, such as minimal personal errands or childcare 

pick- ups/drop-offs. Employee shall be responsible for all applicable income taxes resulting from 

personal use of the vehicle.  

 

In the event that City Vehicle is not available for the purposes stated above, City shall pay 

Manager Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00) monthly in compensation on a pro rata basis for the use 

and maintenance of Manager’s personal vehicle on City business. The car allowance is subject to 

federal and state income tax provisions for salary purposes. Manager shall not receive further 

reimbursement for travel mileage within a fifty (50) mile radius of the City. For any required travel 

mileage outside the fifty (50) mile radius, Manager shall be reimbursed at the current allowable 

I.R.S. rate. The Employee shall maintain and be responsible for paying for liability, property 

damage, and comprehensive insurance coverage, with minimum coverages of $100,000 for each 

injury and $300,000 for all injuries in one accident and $100,000 for property damage, upon such 

vehicle and shall further be responsible for all expenses attendant to the purchase, operation, 

maintenance, repair, and replacement of said vehicle.  

 

B. Cell phone: City shall provide Manager with a cell phone for use for conducting 

City business and limited personal use as appropriate. 

 

C. Vacation Time: City shall provide Manager ten (10) paid vacation days of paid 

vacation during the term of this Agreement. 

 

D. Sick Time: City shall provide Manager with four (4) hours for each 80 hours pay 

period of paid sick. 

 

E. Paid Holidays: City shall provide Manager fourteen (14) days per year of paid 

holidays as determined by the City. 

 

F. Health Benefits: City shall provide Manager with the same health plans (medical, 

dental, and vision) under the same terms, conditions, and administrative procedures as 

determined by the City Council for all City employees. 

 

G. Pension: City agrees to enroll Manager as a member of the California Public 

Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). The Manager is responsible for paying the full 

97



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 6 

employee portion of CalPERS. City shall pay Manager’s required contributions consistent with 

the contribution level paid on and behalf of all other City employees. 

 

H. Management Leave: City shall provide Manager forty (40) hours per year of 

personal leave in accordance with the City’s policies. 

 

I. Memberships: The City will pay for Manager’s ICMA membership. The City will 

consider paying for Manager’s membership in other organizations on an individual basis. 

 

J. The Manager will receive all benefits set forth in City policies and be subject to all 

City rules, procedures and policies, including personnel policies, except the benefits set forth in 

this Agreement shall control over the benefits set forth in City policies. 

 

8. Business and Professional Expenses: 

 

A.   City recognizes that Manager may incur expenses of a non-personal, job-related nature 

that are reasonably necessary to Manager’s service to City. City agrees to either pay such expenses 

in advance or to reimburse the expenses, provided that the expenses are incurred and submitted 

according to City’s normal expense reimbursement procedures or such other procedure as may be 

designated by the City Council. To be eligible for reimbursement, all expenses must be set forth 

and approved by City Council in the City’s budget, supported by documentation meeting City’s 

normal requirements and must be submitted within time limits established by City. 

 

B.  City agrees to pay Manager’s travel and subsistence expenses for official travel, 

meetings, and occasions reasonably necessary to continue Manager’s professional development, 

and for Manager’s reasonable participation in necessary official and other functions for the City, 

including, but not limited to, regional, state, and local conferences, and governmental groups and 

committees on which Manager serves as a member.  Notwithstanding the above, the number of 

conferences or meetings City will pay for each year, and attendance at out-of-state conferences 

and meetings, if any, shall be at the discretion of the City Council as set forth in the City’s budget. 

 

9. City Property 

 

Manager agrees that materials, regardless of their form, that Manager creates, receives, 

creates or produces in connection with this Agreement and/or Manager’s employment as City 

Manager are and will remain the exclusive property of the City. Manager will deliver all originals 

and all copies of such materials to the City that in Manager’s possession or control upon 

termination or expiration of this this Agreement or upon any request from the Mayor or the City. 

 

98



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 7 

10. Non-Disclosure of Proprietary or Confidential Information: 

 

Manager will not at any time, in any form or manner, either directly or indirectly, except 

in the discharge of Manager’s duties as City’s Interim City Manager, divulge, disclose, or 

communicate to any person, firm, or corporation in any manner whatsoever any Proprietary or 

Confidential Information produced, received, acquired or learned by Manager while performing 

the duties of City Manager. For purposes of this Agreement Proprietary and Confidential 

Information, includes but is not limited to, all information and any ideas pertaining in any manner 

to the business of the City, trade secrets, inventions, processes, formulae, data, know-how, 

software, strategies, information about City employees, City utility customers, elected and 

appointed officials and officers, attorney-client privileged information and any information 

concerning any matters detrimentally affecting or relating to the business of the City without 

regard to whether any or all of the foregoing matters would be deemed confidential, material, or 

important.  During Manager’s employment by City, Manager shall use Proprietary and 

Confidential Information only for the benefit of the City and as is, or may be, necessary to perform 

Manager’s job responsibilities under this Agreement.  Following termination or expiration of this 

Agreement, Manager shall not use any Proprietary or Confidential Information and shall not 

disclose any Proprietary or Confidential Information to any person or entity without the express 

written consent of City. 

 

11. Manager’s Commitments Binding on City Only on Written Consent: 

 

Manager shall not have the right to make any contracts or other commitments for or on 

behalf of the City without the written consent of City or as delegated to Manager by the City 

Council. 

 

12. Termination of Employment and this Agreement; General Release; Severance: 

 

A.     Manager is an at-will employee and works exclusively at the pleasure and sole 

discretion of the City Council. This Agreement and at-will employment relationship, as provided 

in Government Code Section 36506 and in this Agreement, may be terminated at any time, with 

or without cause or notice by the City Council as determined by the affirmative votes of a majority 

of the members of the City Council at a meeting of the City Council, except that Manager’s 

employment may only be terminated without cause by a unanimous vote of the City Council during 

the first one hundred twenty (120) days after the seating and swearing-in of one or more City 

Council members. Nothing in this Agreement, nor in any City policy, rule, procedure or ordinance 

shall modify the Manager’s status as an at-will employee or limit the City’s ability to treat the 

Manager as an at-will employee, even though Manger’ job duties, title, compensation, and 

benefits, as well as the City’s policies, may change from time to time. 

 

99



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 8 

B. If Manager is terminated without cause, Manager will be provided with severance 

pay equal to one (1) month of Manager’s Base Salary. Payment of severance pay is subject to the 

following: 

 

1.     Upon Manager’s execution of the “General Release Agreement” in the form 

set forth in in Exhibit “A” of this Agreement, Severance Pay shall be payable in one lump 

sum pursuant to the terms of said Agreement. 

 

2.     Manager agrees and understands that acceptance of the City’s offer of 

severance pay at the time Manager’s at-will employment is terminated by the City Council 

is pursuant to the execution of the “General Release Agreement” identified in Exhibit “A” 

of this Agreement and shall constitute liquidated damages and Manager’s sole and 

exclusive remedy for any termination of this Agreement by the City Council as noticed in 

said Agreement. 

 

3. In the event Manager voluntarily terminates Manager’s employment with 

City, no severance pay shall be payable to Manager. 

 

4.     In the event City terminates Manager’s at-will employment “for cause”, City 

shall have no obligation to pay severance pay under this Agreement.  A termination “for 

cause” may include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

 

(a) A material breach of the terms of this Agreement; 

 

(b) Violation of City policies or procedures; 

 

(c) Failure to properly perform assigned duties;  

 

(d) Theft of City property; 

 

(e) Insubordination; 

 

(f) Unauthorized absence from employment; 

 

(g) Conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendre to a felony or 

misdemeanor relating to Manager’s fitness to perform assigned duties 

or Manager’s reputation; 

 

(h) Conviction of any crime involving an “abuse of office or position,” as 

that term is defined in Government Code Section 53243.4; 

100



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 9 

 

(i) Failure to maintain satisfactory working relationships with other 

employees or the public; 

 

(j) Improper use of City funds; 

 

(k) Unauthorized use of City property; 

 

(l) Willful misconduct or malfeasance; 

 

(m) Failure or inability to provide a bond as required by the Portola 

Municipal Code;  

 

(n) Conduct unbecoming the position of City Manager or repeated failure 

of good behavior either during or outside of employment such that the 

Manager’s conduct causes, or is likely to cause, scandal, severe 

discredit or embarrassment to the City or damage to the reputation of 

the City; and 

 

(o) Any act of dishonesty, fraud, misrepresentation or moral turpitude. 

 

 

C.    If, during the Term or any extended Term, Manager dies, Manager’s estate shall 

receive any accrued Base Salary and benefits, but shall not be entitled to any additional 

compensation or payment, including severance pay. 

 

D.    In the event Manager is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to perform 

Manager’s duties because of sickness, accident, injury, or mental incapacity for a period of sixty 

(60) consecutive days, the City may terminate Manager’s employment and this Agreement. 

Manager shall receive any accrued Base Salary and benefits, but shall not be entitled to additional 

compensation or payment, including severance pay. 

 

E.    Manager may resign from Manager’s employment at any time upon giving forty-five 

(45) days written notice to the City Council. If Manager resigns from employment, Manager shall 

not be entitled to any additional compensation or payment, including severance pay, but shall be 

entitled only to accrued Base Salary and benefits. 

 

14. Abuse of Office or Position: 

 

101



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 10 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this section, pursuant to the requirements set 

forth in Government Code Section 53243.2, if Manager is convicted of a crime involving an abuse 

of Manager’s  office or position, all of the following shall apply: (a) if Manager is provided with 

administrative leave pay pending an investigation, Manager shall be required to fully reimburse 

City such amounts paid; (b) if City pays for the criminal legal defense of Manager (which would 

be in City’s sole discretion, as it is generally not obligated to pay for a criminal defense), Manager 

shall be required to fully reimburse City such amounts paid; and (c) if this Agreement is 

terminated, any severance pay related to the termination that Manager may receive from City shall 

be fully reimbursed to City or shall be void if not yet paid to Manager.  For purposes of this Section, 

abuse of office or position means either: (i) an abuse of public authority, including, but not limited 

to, waste, fraud, and violation of the law under color of authority; or (ii) a crime against public 

justice. 

 

15. Indemnification: 

 

In accordance with and subject to California’s Government Claims Act, the City shall 

defend and indemnify the Manager against and for all losses sustained by the Manager in direct 

consequences of the discharge of Manager’s duties on the City’s behalf for the period of Manager’s 

employment. City shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Manager against any tort, 

professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, 

arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Manager’s duties as the 

City Manager. The City will compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of 

any settlement or judgment rendered thereon, as appropriate and determined by the City Council. 

 

In the event the Manager is sued for damages arising out of the performance of Manager’s 

duties, the City shall provide defense counsel for the City Manager in such suit and indemnify 

Manager from any judgment rendered against Manager, provided that such indemnity shall not 

extend to any judgment for damages arising out of any willful wrongdoing. Said indemnification 

shall extend beyond termination of employment and the otherwise termination or expiration of this 

Agreement to provide protection for any such acts undertaken or committed in Manager’s capacity 

as City Manager, regardless of whether the notice of filing of a lawsuit occurs during or following 

employment with the City. 

 

16. Conflict of Interest 

 

Because of the duties and role of the Manager on behalf of the City and its citizenry, the 

Manager shall not, during the term of this Agreement, individually, as a partner, joint venturer, 

officer or shareholder, invest or participate in any business venture conducting business in the 

corporate limits of the City, except for stock ownership in any company whose capital stock is 

publicly held and regularly traded, without the prior approval of the City Council. For and during 

102



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 11 

the term of this Agreement, the Manager further agrees, except for a personal residence or 

residential property acquired or held for future use as Manager’s personal residence, not to invest 

in any other real estate or real property improvements within the corporate limits of the City, 

without prior consent of the City Council. 

 

The Manager shall not engage in any business or transaction or have a financial or other 

personal interest or association, direct or indirect, which is in conflict with the proper discharge of 

official duties or would tend to impair independence of judgment or action in the performance of 

official duties. Personal, as distinguished from financial, interest includes an interest arising from 

blood or marriage relationships or close business, personal or political associations. This section 

shall not serve to prohibit independent acts or other forms of enterprise during those hours not 

covered by active City employment, providing such acts do not constitute a conflict of interest as 

defined herein or by applicable law. 

 

The Manager shall also be subject to the conflict of interest provisions of the California 

Government Code and any conflict of interest code applicable to Manager’s City employment. 

The City Manager is responsible for submitting to the City Clerk the appropriate Conflict of 

Interest Statements at the time of appointment, annually thereafter, and at the time of separation 

from the position. 

 

17. Assistance in Litigation 

 

 Manager agrees that Manager will furnish information and proper assistance to the City as 

it may reasonably require with any litigation, arbitration or mediation in which it may become 

involved, either during or after termination or expiration of this Agreement.  Manager further 

agrees that Manager will not discuss, reveal or convey any information or documents pertaining 

to the City to any person or entity, or attorney for or representative of any person or entity, with 

actual or potential claims adverse to the City except pursuant to duly issued legal process or as 

otherwise authorized by the City. Manager agrees to notify the City immediately upon receipt of 

any legal process or contact pertaining to the City. 

 

18. Entire Agreement: 

 

This Agreement represents the entire and fully integrated agreement between the Parties 

and supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the Parties with 

respect to the employment of Manager by City and contains all of the covenants and agreements 

between the Parties with respect to that employment.  Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges 

that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, have been made 

by either Party, or by anyone acting on behalf of either Party, which are not embodied herein, and 

103



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 12 

that no other employment agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement shall 

be valid or binding upon either Party. 

 

19. Modifications: 

 

Any modifications to this Agreement shall be effective only if in writing and signed by 

both of the Parties. 

 

20. Effect of Waiver: 

 

The failure of either Party to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants, 

or conditions of this Agreement by the other Party shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, 

covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any one 

time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other 

times. 

 

21. Partial Invalidity: 

 

If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 

void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall be deemed severable and continue in full 

force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

 

22. Attorney’s Fees: 

 

If either Party brings any action or proceeding against the other, including but not limited 

to, an action to enforce or to declare the termination, cancellation or revision of the Agreement, 

the prevailing Party in such action or proceedings shall be entitled to receive from the other Party 

all reasonable attorney's fees and costs, incurred in connection therewith. 

 

23. Governing Law and Venue: 

 

This. Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of California. Any action to interpret or enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be held 

exclusively in a state court in Plumas County, California.  Manager expressly waives any right to 

remove such action from Plumas County. 

 

24. Notices: 

 

Any notices to be given hereunder by either Party to the other in writing may be affected 

either by personal delivery, mail, or email. Mailed notices shall be addressed to the Parties as set 

104



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 13 

forth below, but each Party may change their address by written notice given in accordance with 

this section. Notices delivered personally or by email will be deemed communicated as of actual 

receipt. Mailed notices will be deemed communicated and received as of three (3) calendar days 

following the date of mailing. 

 

 

 

CITY:  City of Portola 

Attention: Mayor 

35 Third Avenue 

Portola, CA 96122 

 

MANAGER:  Jon Kennedy 

Addr1 

City, State, Zip 

 

 

 

This Agreement is entered into this _____ day of __________, 2022. 

 

 

 

CITY OF PORTOLA     MANAGER 

 

 

 

By:________________________________  ____________________________________ 

  

Pat Morton, Mayor     Lauren Knox, Manager 

 

 

Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Tara Kindall, City Clerk    Steven C. Gross, City Attorney 

  

105



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 14 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”) is entered into 

this _____ day of __________ 202_, by and between the CITY OF PORTOLA, a municipal 

corporation of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as “City”, “Party”, or “Parties”, as 

the context may require), and Jon Kennedy, an individual residing in Ukiah, California,  

(hereinafter referred to as “Kennedy”, “Party”, or “Parties”, as the context may require), with 

respect to the following recitals: 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Whereas, Kennedy has been employed by the City as its Interim City Manager pursuant to 

an Interim City Manager Employment Agreement entered into and effective as of January 

24, 2022 (“Employment Agreement”); 

B. Whereas, pursuant to Section _____ of the Employment Agreement, the City terminated 

Employee from Employee’s at-will employment as of ________________________ 

(“Separation Date”); and 

C. Whereas, pursuant to Sections ______ of the Employment Agreement, Employee has 

voluntarily agreed to accept the following severance payment from the City in 

consideration of the terms of this Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, Kennedy and the City agree and promise as follows: 

 

1.  In accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement: 

 Kennedy agrees that effective as of the Separation Date, he has 

106



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 15 

separated from and is no longer employed by the City.   

a. Kennedy agrees that he will not contact, disrupt or attempt to 

disrupt City employees while they are working and will not 

interfere with, undermine or attempt to undermine the authority of 

any of supervisorial or managerial staff at the City and will not 

encourage or assist others to do so. 

b. Kennedy acknowledges that he has been paid through the 

Separation Date: (1) all wages; (2) reimbursement for all expenses; 

and (3) for all of his accrued and unused paid vacation.  

c. Kennedy and the City agree that as consideration for entering into 

this Agreement, the City will pay Kennedy only one (1) month of 

his base salary as of the Separation Date, less required and 

authorized withholdings and deductions.  

 

2.  In exchange for the consideration set forth in Section 1, above, and for the 

covenants and mutual releases provided herein, Kennedy, on behalf of himself and his 

representatives, heirs, successors and assigns (collectively hereinafter also “Kennedy”), does 

hereby completely release and forever discharge the City and its past and present elected and 

appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, attorneys, insurers, successors, and assigns 

(collectively “Released Parties”) from any and all claims, rights, demands, actions, causes of 

action, obligations, liabilities, debts, damages, losses, loss of service, liens, liabilities, costs, 

attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, debts and expenses, of any and every kind, nature and character 

whatsoever, in law or in equity, known or unknown, which she may have based on or related to (i) 

a tort, including but not limited to negligent or intentional tort; (ii) contract, including but not 

limited to implied, oral or written contract, or (iii) any federal, state or local law, statute or 

regulation, which Kennedy may now have or have ever had against the Released Parties,  based 

on any act or omission, including but not limited to, any and all claims arising out of or in any way 

connected with Kennedy’s employment with the City and the separation of such employment. 

3.  Kennedy specifically acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement shall operate 

as a complete bar to any litigation, charges, complaints, grievances or demands of any kind 

107



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 16 

whatsoever, including but not limited to those arising under any and all policies and procedures of 

the City, Constitution of the United States; Title VII of the Civil Right Act of 1964, as amended, 

42 U.S.C. 2000(e) et seq., which prohibits discrimination in employment based on race, color, 

national origin, religion or sex; the Civil Rights Act of 1966, 42 U.S.C. 1981 et seq.; the American 

with Disabilities Act (“ADA”),the Equal Pay Act, which prohibits paying men and women unequal 

pay for equal work; the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA”), 29 U.S.C. § 621 et 

seq.; the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act (“OWBPA”), 29 U.S.C. § 623 et seq.; the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 1981, Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”), 29 

U.S.C. 10001 et seq.; Executive Orders 11246 and 11141; the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”); 

the Family and Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”), 29 U.S.C Section 2601 et seq.; the Federal 

Department of Labor (“DOL”); the Constitution of the State California; the California Labor Code; 

the California Department of Labor Standards Enforcement (“DLSE”) regulations, polices or 

guidelines; any other federal, California state statute, regulation, ordinance, or other law 

concerning the payment of wages, overtime, on-call time and benefits; the California Fair 

Employment & Housing Act at California Gov’t Code §§ 12940, et seq.; California Pregnancy 

Disability Leave (“PDL”) at California Gov’t Code § 12945; California Family Rights Act 

(“CFRA”) at California Gov’t Code § 12945.1 et seq.; any other federal, California law prohibiting 

discrimination, harassment, retaliation or protecting whistle blowing activity; any claims of breach 

of public policy of the State of California, or other law prohibiting negligence; civil conspiracy; 

negligent and intentional infliction of emotional distress; breach of contract; wrongful discharge; 

constructive discharge; breach of an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; any express 

or implied contracts; and  any federal or state common law and any federal, state or local statutes, 

ordinances and regulations.  Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, Employee does not 

release any claims that cannot be released as a matter of law including, without limitation, claims 

for indemnity or unpaid wages under the California Labor Code, claims for worker’s compensation 

benefits, his right to bring to the attention of the Equal Employment Opportunity or California 

Department of Fair Employment and Housing claims of discrimination; however, that he does 

release his right to secure damages for any alleged discriminatory treatment. 

 

4.  Kennedy represents and warrants that: 

108



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 17 

a. He has not filed, initiated, or caused to be filed or initiated any grievance or 

legal action covering any claim or liability released in this Agreement or any claim or 

liability against the Released Parties and hereby agrees and promises he will not file, 

initiate, or cause to be filed or initiated, at any time subsequent to the execution of this 

Agreement, any grievance, complaint, claim, charge, suit, action, or cause of action, in any 

state or federal court or before any state, federal or local government or administrative 

agency, against the Released Parties. 

b. He has no claims that he could file with the California Fair Employment 

and Housing Commission or the California Worker’s Compensation Appeals Board. 

 

5.  The matters specifically released and dismissed by this Release Agreement shall 

include, but are not necessarily limited to, all claims and causes of action which Employee has 

against the City and/or any of the Released Parties arising on or before the date that this Release 

Agreement is executed, and ANY OTHER CLAIM OF ANY TYPE WHATSOEVER AGAINST 

THE CITY, AND/OR ANY OTHER RELEASED PARTY; WHETHER SUCH CLAIM IS 

KNOWN OR UNKNOWN TO EMPLOYEE AND/OR EMPLOYEE'S REPRESENTATIVES 

AND ATTORNEYS arising on or before the date that this Release Agreement is executed.  As a 

further consideration and inducement for this Release Agreement, to the extent permitted by law, 

Employee hereby waives and releases any and all rights under Section 1542 of the California Civil 

Code or any analogous state, local, or federal law, statute, rule, order or regulation, Employee has 

or may have with respect to any claims against the City. California Civil Code Section 1542 reads 

as follows: 

 

“A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE CREDITOR 

OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR 

HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE AND THAT, IF 

KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER 

SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY.” 

Employee hereby expressly agrees that this Agreement shall extend and apply to all 

unknown, unsuspected, and unanticipated claims, injuries, losses and damages, as well as those 

that are now known and/or disclosed. 

 

109



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 18 

6.  The Parties acknowledge that they have had the opportunity to be or have been 

represented by counsel in the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement.  Except as provided 

in Section 1 above, the Parties agree that each Party shall be responsible for the payment of its 

own costs, attorneys’ fees, and all other expenses in connection with the negotiation of this 

Agreement and any claims waived and/or released herein. 

 

7.  It is understood and agreed that this is a compromise settlement of potential 

disputed claims, and the furnishing of the consideration for this Agreement shall not be deemed or 

construed as an admission of liability or responsibility at any time for any purpose regarding any 

matter covered by this Agreement.  It is further agreed and understood that this compromise and 

Agreement are being entered into solely for the purpose of allowing the Parties to avoid the 

expense and inconvenience of bringing or defending against any and all potential claims, rights, 

demands, actions, obligations, liabilities, and causes of action referred to hereinabove. 

 

8. The Parties acknowledge that they have carefully reviewed the Agreement and 

know what it contains and have entered into this Agreement voluntarily, without coercion and 

based on their own judgment and not in reliance on any representation or promises made by the 

other Parties other than those contained herein.  This Agreement incorporates the entire 

understanding between the Parties and recites the sole considerations for the promises exchanged 

herein.  The Parties have read this Agreement, and they are fully aware of its contents and of its 

legal effect. 

 

9.  Kennedy assumes full responsibility to state and federal taxing authorities for any 

tax consequences arising out of payments made or benefits provided to him under this Agreement. 

10.  Kennedy agrees that he will not make any false or otherwise defamatory statements 

about the Released Parties, including without limitation with respect to Kennedy’s employment 

with and separation from the City.  Kennedy agrees that his breach of the terms and conditions set 

forth in this section is a material breach of this Agreement, such that the City will be irreparably 

110



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 19 

harmed as a matter of law and will be entitled to pursue its legal and equitable remedies, including 

without limitation the right to recover money damages and seek injunctive relief, plus reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, without limiting any other remedy it may have at law or equity.  

 

 11. Kennedy acknowledges that by reason of his position with the City, he has had 

access to trade secrets, proprietary information and confidential information pertaining to the 

Released Parties and the City’s elected and appointed officials, employees, customers, contractors 

and vendors (collectively “Confidential Information”).   For purposes of this Agreement, 

“Confidential Information” includes without limitation, passwords, keys and other security 

information which may or may not be encrypted; personal information about past and present 

elected and appointed officials and employees of the City, such as addresses, telephone numbers, 

email addresses, personnel files, evaluations and actions related to personnel matters, such as 

applications for employment, hiring, promotions, separations, disciplinary actions, requests for 

and utilization of leaves of absences, health and other benefits; personal health information 

(including information subject to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

(“HIPAA”)); and information related to past and present negotiations and bargaining positions of 

the City with the City’s contractors, vendors and represented and unrepresented employees and 

their bargaining representatives.  For purposes of this Agreement,  “Confidential Information” 

does not include information:  (i) that is or becomes generally available to the public other than as 

a result of disclosure by Kennedy or any party to whom Kennedy has disclosed such information, 

except for information that is or becomes generally available to the public through disclosure by 

Kennedy or any party to whom Kennedy has disclosed such information in the course and scope 

of Kennedy’s employment by the City; (ii) that is obtained by Kennedy on a non-confidential basis 

from a third party entitled to disclose such information. 

 a. Kennedy represents, warrants and promises that he has returned to the City 

all documents and records containing Confidential Information or any other tangible Confidential 

Information in his possession, custody, or control, and he has not made or kept any hard or 

computerized copies, notes, abstracts, summaries, lists, tapes or other record of any type of 

Confidential Information. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “document” means any 

111



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 20 

written, computerized, typewritten, printed, or recorded material whatsoever, including, but not 

limited to, notes, lists, memoranda, letters, reports, business records publications, data 

compilations, and computer diskettes and files.   

b. Kennedy represents, warrants and promises he has not used and will not use 

for his own benefit, or divulge to any other person, firm, corporation, or other entity, any of the 

Confidential Information which he has obtained or learned as a result of his employment 

relationship with the City, except in the course and scope of his employment by the City. 

c. Kennedy acknowledges and agrees (i) that any violation of this Section 

would cause immediate irreparable damage to the Released Parties and (ii) that determining the 

amount of damage caused to the Released Parties by any such violation would be extremely 

difficult or impossible.  Kennedy therefore agrees that the Released Parties’ remedies at law are 

inadequate, and Kennedy consents to the issuance of injunctive relief after proper judicial 

proceedings, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, a preliminary injunction, 

and a permanent injunction, by a court of appropriate jurisdiction in order to restrain any actual or 

threatened violation of this paragraph without limiting any remedy the Released Parties may have 

at law or in equity. 

12.  This Agreement contains a waiver and release of all claims that Kennedy may 

currently have under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (29 U.S.C. §621-634). 

Kennedy understands and agrees that Kennedy: 

 

a.  Has reviewed all aspects of this Release Agreement; 

b.  Has carefully read and fully understands all of the provisions of this Agreement; 

c.  Has had a full twenty-one (21) days within which to consider this Agreement before 

executing it; 

d.  Is, through this Agreement, releasing the City and the Released Parties from any 

and all claims Employee may have; 

e.  Knowingly and voluntarily agrees to all of the terms set forth in this Agreement; 

f.  Knowingly and voluntarily intends to be legally bound by the terms set forth in this 

Agreement; 

112



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 21 

g.  Was advised, and by this Agreement is advised in writing, to consider the terms of 

this Agreement and consult with Employee’s attorney prior to executing this 

Agreement; 

h.  Has a full seven (7) days following the execution of this Agreement to revoke this 

Agreement and has been and is hereby advised in writing that this Agreement shall 

not become effective or enforceable until the revocation period has expired; and 

i.  Understands that rights or claims including those under the Age Discrimination in 

Employment Act of 1967 (29 U.S.C. §621-634) that may arise after the date of this 

Agreement is executed are not waived. 

   

13.  This Agreement shall not be modified by oral representation made before, during 

or after the execution of this Agreement.  All modifications must be in writing and signed by both 

Parties. 

 

14.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, or duplicates of 

originals, all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

15.  In the event that any part or provision of this Agreement is found to be illegal or 

unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such findings shall not affect the remaining 

parts, portions, or provisions of this Agreement, which shall continue to remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

16.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California. 

 17.  Should either Party commence any court action to enforce or interpret this 

Agreement, the prevailing Party therein shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs, attorneys’ 

fees and experts’ fees incurred therein.  Any court action shall only be commenced and maintained 

in the Superior Court in and for the County of Plumas, State of California. 

113



 

{01000969.DOCX 5 }  Page 22 

 

 

CITY OF PORTOLA     KENNEDY 

 

 

By:________________________________  ____________________________________ 

  

__________________, Mayor   Jon Kennedy 

 

 

Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

 

 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Tara Kindall, City Clerk    Steven C. Gross, City Attorney 

114


	01_2022.01.12 Resolution No. 2494 Claims
	02_2022.01.12 Claims Check Register
	03_2022.01.12 Audit agenda report
	04_2022.01.12 Audit Letter 2021 City of Portola - Governance Letter
	05_2022.01.12 Audit 2021 City of Portola AFS
	part 1
	part 2

	06_2022.01.12 Agenda Report Committee Appointments
	07_2022.01.12 Kennedy Interim City Manager Employment Agreement - Final - 01-07-2022 (01000969-5)



